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PLAINTIFF’S TRIAL BRIEF

This action is brought pursuant to the "Telephone Consumer Protection Act of 1991" (TCPA), which created 47 USC 227 and 47 CFR 64.1200, jointly referred to as the “Act.”  This law and regulation are attached as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively.  In this brief, the Plaintiff will prove that the Defendant violated the TCPA and the associated regulations.  The Plaintiff will present evidence of the Defendant’s telemarketing activity to the Plaintiff and of the Defendant’s failure to properly maintain a database of “do not call” requests and honor the Plaintiff’s requests not to be called.

I. This action can be brought in state court.

Although the TCPA is a federal law, in 47 USC 227(c)(5) it clearly establishes a private right of action by individual telephone subscribers in the court of the state in which they reside.

II. The Defendant is the correct legal entity to sue for these violations.

The Defendant in this case violated the Act while conducting telephone solicitations on behalf of the Globe Newspaper Company, Inc. (“GNC”), the publisher of The Boston Globe.  47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(iii) states that “if [do not call] requests are recorded or maintained by a party other than the person or entity on whose behalf the solicitation is made, the person or entity on whose behalf the solicitation is made will be liable for any failures to honor the do-not-call request.”  Thus, the Defendant might argue that, because they make their solicitations on behalf of GNC, that (e)(2)(iii) declares GNC, and not the Defendant, to be liable for all violations.

This argument, if made, would be specious and circular.  In a prior case, Jaspan v. The Boston Globe, Cambridge District Court Docket #SC-1239/2000, the Plaintiff sued GNC for a subset of the violations claimed in this action.  On page 1 of the Answer to the Plaintiff's Complaint in that case, attached as Exhibit C, GNC asserted that it conducts no telemarketing activity directly but instead that the Defendant in this case, known as Community Newsdealers Inc (“CNI”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of GNC, conducts all telemarketing efforts for The Boston Globe.  On this basis, GNC argued that CNI, and not GNC, was liable for all violations related to CNI’s calls and that the case against GNC should be dismissed.  The court agreed with this argument, and the prior case was dismissed on the grounds that the Plaintiff sued the wrong corporate entity; see Exhibit D.

It cannot rationally be argued that both GNC and Defendant are not liable because the other one is.  This is even more certainly true because the Defendant is a wholly owned subsidiary of GNC.  Making such an argument would only demonstrate contempt for the legal process and the law.

Because this court previously ruled that GNC is not liable for the violations of 47 USC 227 that are the subject of this action, it follows that the Defendant must be.  Thus, the Plaintiff is now suing the correct corporate entity.

III. The Act requires telemarketers to follow specific guidelines concerning telephone subscribers that do not wish to be called, specifies minimum statutory damages in the event of violations of the regulations, and provides an affirmative defense against allegations of violations of the regulations.

In the TCPA section 2, Congress found that “unrestricted telemarketing … can be an intrusive invasion of privacy” and that “many consumers are outraged over the proliferation of intrusive, nuisance calls to their homes from telemarketers.”  They concluded that “Federal law is needed to control residential telemarketing practices” and that “banning such [unwanted] calls to the home … is the only effective means of protecting telephone consumers from this nuisance and privacy invasion.”  To that end, the TCPA amended the Communications Act of 1934 by adding 47 USC 227 which regulates telemarketing calls.

1. 47 USC 227(a)(3) defines “telephone solicitation” as “the initiation of a telephone call or message for the purpose of encouraging the purchase or rental of, or investment in, property, goods, or services, which is transmitted to any person” provided that the caller does not have established business relationship with or permission from the callee.

2. 47 USC 227(a)(4) defines “unsolicited advertisement” as “any material advertising the commercial availability or quality of any property, goods, or services which is transmitted to any person without that person’s prior express invitation or permission.”

3. 47 USC 227(c)(2) requires the FCC to prescribe regulations to protect telephone subscribers' rights to avoid receiving telephone solicitations to which they object.  In response to this requirement, the FCC issued 47 CFR 64.1200.

4. 47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2) requires any entity placing unsolicited advertisements by telephone solicitation to keep “a list of persons who do not wish to receive telephone solicitations made by or on behalf of that person or entity.”  Such a list has come to be known as a “do not call” list, and a request not to be called has come to be known as a “do not call” request.  47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(iii) requires such “do not call” requests to be recorded, and 47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(vi) requires such “do not call” requests to be maintained and honored for 10 years.

5. 47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(iv) requires that “a person or entity making a telephone solicitation must provide the called party with … a telephone number or address at which the person or entity may be contacted.”

6. 47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(iii) requires that “in order to protect the consumer's privacy, persons or entities must obtain a consumer's prior express consent to share or forward the consumer's request not to be called to a party other than the person or entity on whose behalf a solicitation is made or an affiliated entity.”

7. 47 USC 227(c)(5), “Private Right of Action,” grants individuals the right to bring action in state court against an entity violating the regulations prescribed under (c)(2).  It states that individuals may recover actual monetary loss from such violations, or to receive up to $500 in damages for each such violation, whichever is greater.  Furthermore, it states that “if the court finds that the defendant willfully or knowingly violated the regulations prescribed under this subsection,” triple damages may be awarded.

8. 47 USC 227(c)(5) also states that “it shall be an affirmative defense in any action brought under this paragraph that the defendant has established and implemented, with due care, reasonable practices and procedures to effectively prevent telephone solicitations in violation of the regulations prescribed under this subsection.”

IV. The Defendant placed four unsolicited telephone advertisements to the Plaintiff, on the dates November 3, 1999, February 2, 2000, May 22, 2000, and June 16, 2000.

On November 3, 1999, February 2, 2000, May 22, 2000, and June 16, 2000, the Defendant placed unsolicited telephone advertisements to the Plaintiff’s telephone line, 617-354-6428, encouraging the Plaintiff to subscribe to The Boston Globe.  The Plaintiff presents the following evidence of this claim:

1. Exhibit E, the Plaintiff's written log of all telemarketing calls received since June 1999, showing a call received from The Boston Globe on each of the specified dates.  

2. Exhibit F, a more thorough log entry for the June 16, 2000 call from a database system the Plaintiff recently started using.  This log entry contains the date and time of the call, the name of the employee that called (Janice), and a note by the Plaintiff indicating that this was the fourth time the Defendant had called.

3. Exhibit G, which is page 3 of GNC’s Answer in the prior case, mentioned in section II of this brief.  In this excerpt, GNC confirms the calls placed on February 22, 2000 and May 23, 2000.  It does not confirm the call on November 3, 1999 because, it asserts, the Defendant regularly purges all records of calls made after six months. It also does not address the call placed on June 16, 2000 because that call was placed after the Answer in the prior case was written.  Thus, Exhibit G confirms the Plaintiff’s written log for two of the four calls, and does not deny the Plaintiff’s written log for the other two.

V. During each of the said telephone calls, the Plaintiff asked the Defendant not to call again.

Each time the Defendant placed a telemarketing call to the Plaintiff, the Plaintiff asked to be added to the Defendant's “do not call” list. The Plaintiff presents the following evidence of this claim:

1. The title of the written log in Exhibit E, “Telemarketers, asked to remove.”   Prior to learning about the phrase “do not call list,” the Plaintiff asked each telemarketing caller “to remove me from the list you used to call, and not to call again.”  That the Plaintiff titled this log as such in June 1999 indicates that it has been his standard policy to make such a request of each calling telemarketer since then.

2. Exhibit H, the full script of questions displayed by the Plaintiff’s newer database system to be asked of all telemarketing callers.  This list includes a request to be added to the “do not call” list, again indicating that it is the Plaintiff’s standard policy to do so.

3. The most compelling evidence that the Plaintiff always asked not to be called again during each call, however, comes from the Defendant itself.  The Defendant has a “do not call” request form and a database of such requests.  Exhibit I is a properly completed "Do Not Call" Request Form filled out by one of the Defendant’s employees during the May 22, 2000 (third) call to the Plaintiff.  Exhibit J is a printout from the Defendant’s database showing that the request form was processed by May 26, 2000.  These exhibits were in fact presented by GNC as evidence in their own defense in the prior case.  First of all, they confirm beyond doubt that the Plaintiff asked not to be called again during the call on May 23, 2000.  Furthermore, notice that in the Notes section of the form in Exhibit I, the employee noted that the Plaintiff “has asked before to be removed from the calling list.”  During that call, the Plaintiff quite sternly informed the caller that GNC had called numerous times before despite requests not to, that GNC was violating federal law by continuing to do so, and that a lawsuit would be forthcoming.  Obviously, it was this clear warning that finally caused the “do not call” request form to be filled out, and the Note indicating the past problems to be appended.

VI. The Defendant violated the TCPA and its associated regulations during its numerous unsolicited advertisements by telephone solicitation to the Plaintiff.

Each of the calls placed on February 2, 2000, May 22, 2000, and June 16, 2000 violated at least one aspect of 47 USC 227 and/or 47 CFR 64.1200.

a) The calls fall under the definition of “telephone solicitation” and “unsolicited advertisement” in 47 USC 227(a).

The calls in question were sales calls intended to sell subscriptions to The Boston Globe, and thus obviously were “for the purpose of encouraging the purchase of goods” and were “advertising the commercial availability or quality of … goods.”  Furthermore, the Plaintiff has never subscribed to The Boston Globe and has no prior business relationship with GNC nor the Defendant.  As a result, the calls are subject to all of the regulations in 47 USC 227 and 47 CFR 64.1200.

b) The Plaintiff may take action for these calls even though the telephone line is registered under a different name.

The Plaintiff in this case is Mr. Jaspan.  The Plaintiff’s telephone number, 617-354-6428, is registered under the name of Mr. Marc Horowitz.  Mr. Jaspan and Mr. Horowitz are housemates and share the telephone line on which the telemarketing calls were received.

47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(iii) specifically requires that the telephone number of a telephone subscriber that asks not to be called again must be placed on the do-not-call list.  The Act provides no exceptions in the case that multiple people with different names share the phone line.  Therefore, the fact that the Plaintiff’s telephone number is not registered in the name of the Plaintiff is not material to this case.

c) The Defendant did not properly record two of the Plaintiff’s “do not call” requests as required by 47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(iii).

As stated above, each time that the Defendant placed a telemarketing call to the Plaintiff, the Plaintiff asked to be added to the Defendant's "do not call" list.  However, as shown in Exhibit G, the Defendant has no record of these requests for the calls placed on November 3, 1999 and February 22, 2000.  Thus, the Defendant violated 47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(iii) twice.

d) The Defendant failed to honor the Plaintiff’s “do not call” requests as required by 47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(vi).

Given that the Plaintiff asked not to be called again after each call received from the Defendant, each of the calls placed on February 22, 2000, May 22, 2000, and June 16, 2000 violated the Defendant's obligation to honor the Plaintiff's “do not call” request.  Thus, the Defendant violated 47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(vi) three times.

e) The Defendant failed to provide the Plaintiff with a telephone number or address as required by 47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(iv).

As shown in Exhibit H, during the call on June 16, 2000, the caller (who gave the name “Janice”) had neither a telephone number nor an address available for either the Defendant or GNC.  Thus, the Defendant violated 47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(iv) once.

VII. The Defendant failed to follow their own procedures and violated 47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(iii) regarding letters confirming “do not call” requests.

The Defendant’s Procedures for Establishing and Maintaining the “Do Not Call” Database, attached as Exhibit K, states in item 7 that “Personnel in Telemarketing Administration shall also send a `Do Not Call’ confirmation letter … if an individual or a business requests such a letter.”

f) The Defendant failed to provide the Plaintiff with a letter confirming the “Do Not Call” request of June 16, 2000.

On July 21, 2000, the Plaintiff left a voicemail message for Julie M. English, TeleSales Manager for CNI, requesting a letter confirming his “Do Not Call” request of June 16, 2000.  Contrary to their policy, the Plaintiff did not send such a confirmation.  Instead, they sent a letter, attached as Exhibit L, which completely ignored the request for a confirmation letter and instead said that they had already mailed me their Do Not Call policy.  Clearly, sending me the confirmation letter I requested would have provided additional evidence that they violated my “do not call” request; nevertheless, by not sending it, they violated their policy that says they will.

g) The Defendant failed to provide an unrelated third party with a confirmation letter, and violated that party’s rights by disclosing its identity.

To support the claim that they follow their procedure of sending confirmation letters on request, GNC presented Exhibit M as evidence in the prior case.  This is a letter to Mr. Bill Sweeney of Hingham, Massachusetts confirming that he was added to their “do not call” database.  There are two significant issues related to this letter:

1. In a personal telephone call with the Plaintiff, Mr. Sweeney stated that he never received any such confirmation letter.  By not sending the letter to Mr. Sweeney, the Defendant failed to follow its own policy.

2. 47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(iii) states that “in order to protect the consumer's privacy, persons or entities must obtain a consumer's prior express consent to share or forward the consumer's request not to be called to a party other than the person or entity on whose behalf a solicitation is made or an affiliated entity.”  The Defendant presented no evidence that Mr. Sweeney gave his consent to the Defendant or GNC to disclose his name to the Plaintiff or, for that matter, to the public record by including it in a court filing.  The regulations provide no exception for the Defendant to present such information in the case of a civil lawsuit, and the Defendant was clearly not compelled beyond its control to do so.  The Defendant could have obtained the necessary permission from Mr. Sweeney, or any other entity on its “do not call” list, but did not choose to do so.

VIII. The Defendant does not meet the requirements for the affirmative defense provided in 47 USC(c)(5).

The Defendant may argue that it is not liable for any violations under the regulations because 47 USC 227(c)(5) states that “it shall be an affirmative defense in any action brought under this paragraph that the defendant has established and implemented, with due care, reasonable practices and procedures to effectively prevent telephone solicitations in violation of the regulations prescribed under this subsection” (emphasis added).  However, the Defendant does not meet the requirements for this affirmative defense.

It is true that the Defendant appears to have established procedures for complying with the regulations.  Indeed, they have presented the court with numerous documents to that effect.  However, documents by themselves are meaningless unless the policies they mandate are enforced.  The evidence presented in this brief clearly demonstrates that the policies are not enforced:

1. The Plaintiff received four telemarketing calls from the Defendant over a period of little more than seven months, three of them after asking (repeatedly) not to be called.  It cannot be said that the Defendant’s policies “effectively prevent telephone solicitations in violation of the regulations” when in fact they obviously do not prevent such telephone solicitations at all. 

2. The fact that the Plaintiff did not receive the requested letter confirming his “do not call” request of June 16, 2000 shows that the Defendant does not follow its policies.

3. The fact that Mr. Sweeney did not receive the letter confirming his addition to the “do not call” database also shows that the Defendant does not follow its policies.

4. The fact that the Defendant submitted the letter to Mr. Sweeney as evidence without obtaining Mr. Sweeney’s permission demonstrates a reckless disregard for the protection of the privacy of telephone subscribers required by the regulations.

To afford the Defendant immunity from the regulations merely because they have written a few policies but have not regulated their behavior would be a complete violation of the intention of the law.

IX. The Defendant is liable to the Plaintiff for $500 per violation, for a total of $3,000.

As shown in section VI(c) of this brief, the Defendant violated 47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(iii) twice.  As shown in section VI(d) of this brief, the defendant violated 47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(vi) three times. As shown in section VI(e) of this brief, the defendant violated 47 CFR 64.1200(e)(2)(iv) once.  47 USC 227(c)(5) states that the Defendant is liable for $500 in damages for each violation of the regulations.  Because this brief proves six violations of the regulations, the defendant is liable for a total of $3,000 to the Plaintiff.

X. The Defendant willfully and knowingly violated the regulations, and thus should be liable for triple damages.

There can be no doubt that the Defendant has been fully aware of 47 USC 227 for many years.  Their own Telemarketing Department 'Do Not Call' Policy and Procedures, attached as Exhibit N, was adopted in December 1992.  They have numerous other documents and policies related to these regulations.  In the prior case, they used the documents to claim the affirmative defense described above.

There also can be no doubt that the Defendant violated the regulations even after, by their own admission and evidence as shown in Exhibits I and J, the Plaintiff's telephone number was properly recorded in their "do not call" database.  They show the number in their database as of May 26, 2000, but they placed a telemarketing call to the Plaintiff on June 16, 2000.  This makes it clear that while they maintain a "do not call" database, the do not actually use it to remove telephone numbers from the lists they call.

These facts demonstrate that the Defendant’s policies for complying with the regulations are maintained in bad faith, simply to use as a defense when they are accused of violating the regulations.

47 USC 227(c)(5) states that “if the court finds that the defendant willfully or knowingly violated the regulations prescribed under this subsection,” triple damages may be awarded.  It is hard to imagine a more egregious violation of both the letter and spirit of the regulations, nor a better example of a violation that ought to be punished with triple damages.

XI. The damages requested by the Plaintiff are allowable in small claims court.

Under G.L. c. 218, § 21, the limit for the initial amount of a small claims action is $2,000.  The law specifically states that the small claims court may award double or treble damages that exceed the $2,000 limit, provided that the base amount of the claim is not greater than $2,000.  Furthermore, a claim in excess of the statutory amount may be filed as long as the excess is waived by the Plaintiff.  The Plaintiff waived any excess base award over $2,000 and any excess treble damages award over $6,000 in the initial complaint in this case.

SUMMARY
The Defendant committed six separate violations 47 USC 227 and 47 CFR 64.1200, for a total liability of $3,000.  All of the violations were knowing and willful, incurring total treble damages of $9,000.  The Plaintiff waives any excess base amount over $2,000 and excess treble damages over $6,000 to which he is otherwise entitled. Therefore, the Plaintiff asks the court to award $2,000 in damages, an additional $4,000 as triple damages, and $19 in court costs, for a total of $6,019, plus any other relief that is just and equitable.
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